
 

 1 

 

GUADALUPE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 

REGULAR SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, August 10, 2016 

5:30 pm – Call to Order, Adjournment to Closed Session 

6:00 pm – Reconvene to Public Session 

 

LOCATION OF MEETING:  MARY BUREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

     MULTIPUROSE ROOM 

     1050 PERALTA STREET, GUADALUPE, CA 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 

please contact the Superintendent’s Office at (805)343-2114.  Notification of 48 hours prior to the meeting will 

enable the district to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. 

 

Any of the materials related to items on this agenda are available for viewing at the Office of the District 

Superintendent, 4465 Ninth Street, Guadalupe, CA during regular business hours, 8:00 am to 5:00 pm, Monday 

through Friday; telephone 805-343-2114. 

 

I. Call to Order 

 

A. Roll Call 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

II. Adjourn to closed session 

 

Closed Session Public Comments:  This section of the agenda is intended for 

members of the public to address the Board of Education on items involving the 

school district that are being considered Closed Session.  Such testimony shall be 

limited to three (3) minutes each person and fifteen (15) minutes each topic.  If an 

answer to a specific question is requested, the Board President will, if appropriate, 

direct administration to respond in writing. 

 

The Board will consider and may act upon any of the following items in closed 

session.  Any action taken will be reported publicly at the end of closed session. 

 

A. Certificated and/or Classified Personnel Order 2016/2017-02 

(The Board will be asked to review and approve a number of routine transfers, 

reassignments, promotions, evaluations, terminations, resignations and hiring as 

reported by the District Superintendent.)   Government Code Section 54957 

 

B. Real Estate Negotiations Pursuant to Government Code §54956.8. 

 

III. Reconvene in open session; announce closed session actions 

 

The Board will announce any action taken on Public Employees Certificated and/or 

Classified Personnel. 

 

 



 

 2 

IV. Open Session – Public Comments 
 

The Board of Trustees will receive comments about items and issues not appearing on 

tonight's agenda.  We ask that those who address the Board limit their remarks to 

three (3) minutes.  Open meeting laws and fairness to other residents, who may have 

an interest in your topic, prohibit the Board from taking action or engaging in 

extended discussion of your concerns.  The Board may direct its district staff to meet 

at a later date with speakers who have specific concerns or needs.  The Board may 

also direct that an issue be placed on a future agenda for discussion and consideration.  

This permits the Board and staff members to prepare and receive necessary 

information and for the public to be aware that a topic is being formally considered.  

We appreciate your cooperation. 
 

Any person may address the Board concerning any item on the agenda and may be 

granted three (3) minutes to make a presentation to the Board at the time a specific 

item is under discussion or, in the case of a closed session item, prior to the Board 

convening in closed session.  A form is available from the Superintendent's secretary 

that should be completed and returned to her.  Please indicate on the form if 

additional time is requested and state the reason.  The president may grant additional 

time if circumstances permit. 
 

The public may address the board on any matter pertaining to the school district that 

is not on the agenda. 
 

V. Superintendent’s Report 
 

The Superintendent may report to the Board about various matters involving the 

district.  There will be no board discussion except to ask questions or refer matters to 

staff, and no action will be taken.  The item(s) may be listed on a subsequent agenda. 

 
  Drop Out/Graduation Rate Study for Guadalupe Union School District 

  Dr. Ken Parker, Grant Consultant 

 

VI. Board Member Reports 

 

Each member of the Board may report about various matters involving the district.  

There will be no board discussion except to ask questions or refer matters to staff, and 

no action will be taken.  The item(s) may be listed on a subsequent agenda.  

 

VII. Consent Agenda 
 

The Board will be asked to approve all of the following items by a single vote, unless 

any member of the board or if the public asks that an item be removed from the 

consent agenda and considered and discussed separately.  
 

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 13, 2016. 

B. Approval of Warrant Listing Report of Expenditures. 

 

It is being recommended that Consent Agenda Items VII. A and B be 

approved, as presented. 

 

 



 

 3 

 

VIII. Items Scheduled for Action 

 

A. General Functions 

 

1. Adoption of Guadalupe Union School District Board Mission, Vision and 

Core Beliefs.  The Board will review and consider the adoption of the revised 

Board Mission, Vision and Core Beliefs effective the 2016/2017 school year. 

 

It is recommended that the Board approve the revised Guadalupe Union 

School District Board Mission, Vision and Core Beliefs, as presented. 

 

2. Approval of Legal Services Agreement By and Between the Guadalupe 

Union School District and Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, 

for Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel Services in Connection with 

General Obligation Bond Proceedings.  The Board will review and consider 

the approval of the Legal Services Agreement to provide services as bond 

counsel in connection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds for the purpose 

of providing financing of mentioned projects. 

 

It is being recommended that the Board approve the Legal Services 

Agreement By and Between the Guadalupe Union School District and Jones 

Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, for Bond Counsel and Disclosure 

Counsel Services in Connection with General Obligation Bond Proceedings, 

as presented. 

 

3. Adoption of Resolution 2016/2017-03; Proposition 51 – Kindergarten 

through Community College Public Education Facilities Bond Act of 

2016.  The Board will review and consider the adoption of Resolution 

2016/2017-03.  Proposition 51 provides for renovation and upgrade of 

existing classrooms, construction of new classrooms to accommodate growth, 

and for career technical education facilities to provide job training to meet the 

trained workforce needs of California’s employers. 

 

Roll Call will be taken for the approval and adoption of Resolution 

2016/2017-03, as presented. 

 

B. Employees/Personnel 

 

1. Approval and Adoption of Job Description (Classified) – Case 

Manager/Educator.  The Board will review and consider the approval and 

adoption of the proposed job description (Classified) Case Manager/Educator. 

 

It is being recommended that the Board approve and adopt the job 

description (Classified) Case Manager/Educator, as presented. 

 

2. Approval of Agreement between the Guadalupe Union School District 

and Burnham Benefits Insurance Services – 2016/2017 School Year.  Prior 

to taking action, the Board will review and consider approving the Agreement 

between the Guadalupe Union School District and Burnham Benefits 



 

 4 

Insurance Services. Mrs. Maggie Lepore, Senior Account Executive will be 

present to provide an overview of their services and to address questions the 

Board may have. 

 

It is being recommended that the Board approve the Agreement between the 

Guadalupe Union School District and Burnham Benefits Insurance Services – 

2016/2017 School Year, as presented. 

 

C. Child Nutrition/Food Services 
 

1. Formal Adoption of Amended/Revised Board Policy 5030 – Student 

Wellness.  The Board will review and consider the Formal Adoption of the 

amended/revised Board Policy 5030 – Student Wellness. 

 

It is being recommended that the Board formally adopt the amended/revised 

Board Policy 5030 – Student Wellness, as presented. 

 

D.   Curriculum and Instruction 

 

1. Approval & Adoption of College Preparatory Math Materials for 6
th

 – 8
th

 

grades. The Board will review and consider the approval and adoption of the 

College Preparatory Math Materials.  Books are available for all students in 

Sixth through Eighth Grades. 

 

It is being recommended that the Board approve and adopt the College 

Preparatory Math Materials for students in grades Sixth through Eighth, as 

presented. 

 

 

IX. Items Scheduled for Information/Discussion 

 

A. General Functions 

 

1. Second Reading:  Updated AR.BP 5144.1 – Students: Suspension and 

Expulsion/Due Process. 

2. Board and Superintendent Protocols. 

3. Board Self-Evaluation 2015/2016. 

4. SBCEO Williams Quarterly Report. 

 

B. Business/Finance 

 

1. Fund Balance Summary – July 31, 2016 

 

C. Transportation 

 

1. Policies:  Transportation: BP/AR: 3540 and Transportation Routes            

and Services: BP/AR 3541 

 

 

 



 

 5 

D. Employee Personnel 

 

1.  Music/Band Teacher 

 

X. Future Agenda Items 

 

 

XI. Adjournment 

 

Future Meetings:    

 

Regular School Board Meeting - Wednesday, September 14, 2016  5:30 pm at Mary 

Buren Elementary School, 1050 Peralta Street, Guadalupe, CA 93434. 
 



 

 1 

 

GUADALUPE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 

REGULAR SCHOOL BOARD MEETING BACKUP 

Wednesday, August 10, 2016 

5:30 pm – Call to Order, Adjournment to Closed Session 

6:00 pm – Reconvene to Public Session 

 

I. Call to Order 

 

A. Roll Call 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

II. Adjourn to closed session 

 

Closed Session Public Comments:  This section of the agenda is intended for 

members of the public to address the Board of Education on items involving the 

school district that are being considered Closed Session.  Such testimony shall be 

limited to three (3) minutes each person and fifteen (15) minutes each topic.  If an 

answer to a specific question is requested, the Board President will, if appropriate, 

direct administration to respond in writing. 

 

The Board will consider and may act upon any of the following items in closed 

session.  Any action taken will be reported publicly at the end of closed session. 

 

A. Certificated and/or Classified Personnel Order 2016/2017-02 

(The Board will be asked to review and approve a number of routine transfers, 

reassignments, promotions, evaluations, terminations, resignations and hiring as 

reported by the District Superintendent.)   Government Code Section 54957 

 

B. Real Estate Negotiations Pursuant to Government Code §54956.8. 

 

III. Reconvene in open session; announce closed session actions 

 

The Board will announce any action taken on Public Employees Certificated and/or 

Classified Personnel. 

 

IV. Open Session – Public Comments 
 

The Board of Trustees will receive comments about items and issues not appearing on 

tonight's agenda.  We ask that those who address the Board limit their remarks to 

three (3) minutes.  Open meeting laws and fairness to other residents, who may have 

an interest in your topic, prohibit the Board from taking action or engaging in 

extended discussion of your concerns.  The Board may direct its district staff to meet 

at a later date with speakers who have specific concerns or needs.  The Board may 

also direct that an issue be placed on a future agenda for discussion and consideration.  

This permits the Board and staff members to prepare and receive necessary 

information and for the public to be aware that a topic is being formally considered.  

We appreciate your cooperation. 



 

 2 

 

Any person may address the Board concerning any item on the agenda and may be 

granted three (3) minutes to make a presentation to the Board at the time a specific 

item is under discussion or, in the case of a closed session item, prior to the Board 

convening in closed session.  A form is available from the Superintendent's secretary 

that should be completed and returned to her.  Please indicate on the form if 

additional time is requested and state the reason.  The president may grant additional 

time if circumstances permit. 
 

The public may address the board on any matter pertaining to the school district that 

is not on the agenda. 
 

V. Superintendent’s Report 
 

The Superintendent may report to the Board about various matters involving the 

district.  There will be no board discussion except to ask questions or refer matters to 

staff, and no action will be taken.  The item(s) may be listed on a subsequent agenda. 

 
  Drop Out/Graduation Rate Study for Guadalupe Union School District 

  Dr. Ken Parker, Grant Consultant 

 

VI. Board Member Reports 

 

Each member of the Board may report about various matters involving the district.  

There will be no board discussion except to ask questions or refer matters to staff, and 

no action will be taken.  The item(s) may be listed on a subsequent agenda.  

 

VII. Consent Agenda 
 

The Board will be asked to approve all of the following items by a single vote, unless 

any member of the board or if the public asks that an item be removed from the 

consent agenda and considered and discussed separately.  
 

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 13, 2016. 

B. Approval of Warrant Listing Report of Expenditures. 

 

It is being recommended that Consent Agenda Items VII. A and B be 

approved, as presented. 

 

 

VIII. Items Scheduled for Action 

 

A. General Functions 

 

1. Adoption of Guadalupe Union School District Board Mission, Vision and 

Core Beliefs.  The Board will review and consider the adoption of the revised 

Board Mission, Vision and Core Beliefs effective the 2016/2017 school year. 

 

It is recommended that the Board approve the revised Guadalupe Union 

School District Board Mission, Vision and Core Beliefs, as presented. 

 

Motion:    Seconded:    Ayes:  Noes: 



 

 3 

 

2. Approval of Legal Services Agreement By and Between the Guadalupe 

Union School District and Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, 

for Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel Services in Connection with 

General Obligation Bond Proceedings.  The Board will review and consider 

the approval of the Legal Services Agreement to provide services as bond 

counsel in connection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds for the purpose 

of providing financing of mentioned projects. 

 

It is being recommended that the Board approve the Legal Services 

Agreement By and Between the Guadalupe Union School District and Jones 

Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, for Bond Counsel and Disclosure 

Counsel Services in Connection with General Obligation Bond Proceedings, 

as presented. 

 

Motion:    Seconded:    Ayes:  Noes: 

 

3. Adoption of Resolution 2016/2017-03; Proposition 51 – Kindergarten 

through Community College Public Education Facilities Bond Act of 

2016.  The Board will review and consider the adoption of Resolution 

2016/2017-03.  Proposition 51 provides for renovation and upgrade of 

existing classrooms, construction of new classrooms to accommodate growth, 

and for career technical education facilities to provide job training to meet the 

trained workforce needs of California’s employers. 

 

Roll Call will be taken for the approval and adoption of Resolution 

2016/2017-03, as presented. 

 

____Baro ____Sabedra-Cuello ____Michaud ____Arriola ____Cepeda 

 

B. Employees/Personnel 

 

1. Approval and Adoption of Job Description (Classified) – Case 

Manager/Educator.  The Board will review and consider the approval and 

adoption of the proposed job description (Classified) Case Manager/Educator. 

 

It is being recommended that the Board approve and adopt the job 

description (Classified) Case Manager/Educator, as presented. 

 

Motion:    Seconded:    Ayes:  Noes 

 

2. Approval of Agreement between the Guadalupe Union School District 

and Burnham Benefits Insurance Services – 2016/2017 School Year.  Prior 

to taking action, the Board will review and consider approving the Agreement 

between the Guadalupe Union School District and Burnham Benefits 

Insurance Services. Mrs. Maggie Lepore, Senior Account Executive will be 

present to provide an overview of their services and to address questions the 

Board may have. 

 



 

 4 

It is being recommended that the Board approve the Agreement between the 

Guadalupe Union School District and Burnham Benefits Insurance Services – 

2016/2017 School Year, as presented. 

 

Motion:    Seconded:    Ayes:  Noes 

 

C. Child Nutrition/Food Services 
 

1. Formal Adoption of Amended/Revised Board Policy 5030 – Student 

Wellness.  The Board will review and consider the Formal Adoption of the 

amended/revised Board Policy 5030 – Student Wellness. 

 

It is being recommended that the Board formally adopt the amended/revised 

Board Policy 5030 – Student Wellness, as presented. 

 

Motion:    Seconded:    Ayes:  Noes 

 

D.   Curriculum and Instruction 

 

1. Approval & Adoption of College Preparatory Math Materials for 6
th

 – 8
th

 

grades. The Board will review and consider the approval and adoption of the 

College Preparatory Math Materials.  Books are available for all students in 

Sixth through Eighth Grades. 

 

It is being recommended that the Board approve and adopt the College 

Preparatory Math Materials for students in grades Sixth through Eighth, as 

presented. 

 

Motion:    Seconded:    Ayes:  Noes 

 

 

IX. Items Scheduled for Information/Discussion 

 

A. General Functions 

 

1. Second Reading:  Updated AR.BP 5144.1 – Students: Suspension and 

Expulsion/Due Process. 

2. Board and Superintendent Protocols. 

3. Board Self-Evaluation 2015/2016. 

4. SBCEO Williams Quarterly Report. 

 

B. Business/Finance 

 

1. Fund Balance Summary – July 31, 2016 

 

C. Transportation 

 

1. Policies:  Transportation: BP/AR: 3540 and Transportation Routes            

and Services: BP/AR 3541 

 



 

 5 

D. Employee Personnel 

 

1.  Music/Band Teacher 

 

X. Future Agenda Items 

 

 

XI. Adjournment 

 

Future Meetings:    

 

Regular School Board Meeting - Wednesday, September 14, 2016  5:30 pm at Mary 

Buren Elementary School, 1050 Peralta Street, Guadalupe, CA 93434. 
 



Drop Out/Graduation Rate Study for Guadalupe Union Elementary School District 

For:  Ed Cora, Superintendent, Guadalupe Union School District 

From:  Kenneth C. Parker Ed.D. Consultant 

Regarding: Drop Out/Graduation Rate Study 

 

 

Background 

 

The geographic distance of Guadalupe from the high schools that serve its graduates has made it 

difficult to track subsequent student success toward high school graduation.  This reality necessitated a 

study of high school students who originated from Guadalupe’s junior high school, Kermit McKenzie, to 

determine the success they had in attaining high school graduation.  Lessons learned from these studies, 

and a related review of the professional literature, were stated as Findings, Conclusions and 

Recommendations at the end of this study.  

 

In the final analysis, the mission of this study was to learn from the past to inform future educational 

practice. 

 

The Guadalupe Union Elementary School District sends the vast majority of its public school students to 

Ernest Righetti High School*, a public high school that is part of the Santa Maria Joint Union High School 

District. Students who do not attend Righetti High School traditionally attend either: 

 

1. Pioneer High School* 

2. Santa Maria High School* 

3. Delta High School (continuation or independent study)* 

4. Orcutt Academy High School  

5. St. Joseph High School  

6. Valley Christian Academy High School  

7. Other small independent study charter high school programs 

8. Other high schools outside of the area, region, state or country 
*Due to data constraints, Guadalupe graduates were studied from throughout the Santa Maria Joint Union High School 

District and not school-by-school within the SMJUHSD. 

 

Assumptions 

 Individual student data was not used in this study.  Only group data and information gained 

from the professional literature were used to accomplish the purposes of this study. 

 The anonymity and privacy of all students was respected. 

 At the state level, drop out statistics are based upon complex calculations of four successive 

graduating classes.  That calculation was not possible at the local level.   

 

 



Research Method 

 

Guadalupe student graduation data from the 8th grade Kermit McKenzie class of 2011 was subsequently 

studied in 2015, the year students from the 2011 class would have experienced on-time graduation from 

high school.  Treatment of data included number, percentage data and findings from a literature review. 

Data and information gained from a review of the literature was reported as it appeared in the 

literature. 

 

Purpose 

 

The purpose of this study was to determine the number of students graduating and not graduating from 

the Kermit McKenzie Jr. High School’s eighth grade class of 2011 and the subsequent number  who later 

graduated from high school in 2015 - four years later.  It should be noted that when the 2016 high 

school graduation statistics are available these data should be studied as well. 

 

Further, this study endeavored to associate failure to graduate with causes studied in the professional 

literature.  Examples of reasons for failure to graduate from high school included, but were not limited 

to, poor attendance, poor behavior and/or poor academic performance. 

 

Problem 

 

The level of high school success experienced by Guadalupe students is largely unknown. 

 

Research Questions  

 

1.  How many students graduated from the eighth grade class at Kermit McKenzie Jr. High School 

in June of 2011?   

2. How many eighth grade students failed to graduate eighth grade at Kermit McKenzie on time in 

June of 2011? 

3. How many students graduated from high school on time in 2015 from the 2011 Kermit 

McKenzie graduating class?  

4. How many students graduated from high schools other than those in the SMJUHSD? 

5. How many students had no record of graduation?  

6. Were there early predictors of possible drop out or late graduation? 

 

A Brief Review of the Literature 

 

Model Programs - Among research available from the US Department of Education website was an 

exhaustive dropout study done in Colorado and published in 2008.  Though the timeliness of the 

research is 8 years old, this study, entitled Check and Connect  or What Works Clearinghouse - Drop Out 

Prevention was exceptionally robust, in that it offered dropout prevention strategies that were thorough 

and programmatic in format – allowing the user to implement various strategies that help students to 



stay on track toward timely academic graduation.  The heart of this research was included in the 

Appendix for your review.   The six recommendations from this study were: 

1. Recommendation One - Use data systems that support a realistic diagnosis and identification of 

the students who are at high risk of dropping out of high school.   

2. Recommendation Two – Assign adult advocates to students at risk of dropping out. 

3. Recommendation Three – Provide academic support and enrichment to improve academic 

performance. 

4. Recommendation Four – Implement programs that improve students’ classroom and social 

skills. 

5. Recommendation Five – Personalize the learning environment and instructional process. 

6. Recommendation Six - Provide rigorous and relevant instruction to identified students. 

 

Effective delivery of targeted AVID strategies could very well accomplish much of the Check and 

Connect/ What Works Clearinghouse program emphasis. Please consult Appendix for more information 

on Check and Connect. 

 

California Graduation Data - A review of state-wide dropout data found that the state of California 

recently announced a state-wide graduation rate of 80.2%. Though data was not available to precisely 

replicate state-wide graduation statistical calculations, the integrity of local data was enough to have 

high confidence in it as an accurate reflection of high school graduation success among Guadalupe 

students.  

 

Findings - Local Data  

 

Note: It is important to note that this study would not have been possible without the kind and patient help of Jenni Allen, 
Student Information System Analyst in the Santa Maria Joint Union High School District; Tammy Rhine, Executive Assistant to 
the Superintendent of SMJUHSD; Carla Benevedo, Administrative Assistant of the Guadalupe USD;  and Veronica Barrios, 
Administrative Assistant Services-Ed Services also of the Guadalupe USD. 

 

The following data was reported in chart format listing the numbers of high school graduates from the 

Kermit McKenzie Jr. High graduating classes of 2011 and relating that to their graduation status in June 

of 2015 from the SMJUHSD and other valley high schools.   Findings are listed by category for 2015.   

 Chart One displays Kermit McKenzie subgroup data from SMJUHSD.   

 Chart Two displays graduation rates from the SMJUHSD in 2015 for Guadalupe graduates of 

2011.  

 Chart Three lists the Guadalupe 2015 graduation rates from St. Joseph, Valley Christian and 

Orcutt Academy High School. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Chart One – SMJUHSD 2015 High School Graduation Statistics for Kermit McKenzie 2011 Eighth Grade 

Cohort 

102 Guadalupe 2011 Frosh Students Enrolled in SMJUHSD 

Freshman 2011-2012 / HS Graduates June 2015 

                    Enrolled in SMJUHSD # % 

Graduated 79 77% 

Did Not Graduate 7 7% 

CA Proficiency Exam Passage but no Diploma 1 1% 

Moved to Another CA School 9 9% 

No Show (Unable to determine reason) 1 1% 

Transfer due to Discipline 1 1% 

Moved to Another Country 2 2% 

Expelled 0 0% 

Moved to Another State 1 1% 

Enrolled in Adult Education 0 0% 

Attending College 0 0% 

Moved to CA Private School 0 0% 

Runaway 2 2% 

Left for Unknown Reasons 0 0% 

Deceased 0 0% 

  100% 
 

 

A review of high school graduation rates of Kermit McKenzie eighth graders show the 2015 high school 

graduating class (eighth graders in 2011) to have the highest graduation rate of any class from the past 

four years.   

Chart Two - High School Graduation Rates for SMJUHSD Guadalupe Students 

School Year 2007-2008 2008-
2009 

2009-
2010 

2010-
2011 

2011-
2012 

Percent Graduated 58% 68% 69% 64% 77% 
Number Graduated 80 70 81 70 79 
Number Enrolled in Class 137 103 117 109 102 

 

Finally, Chart Three, below, reveals the relatively small number of Guadalupe’s students who attend 

high school outside of the SMJUHSD. 

 

Chart Three – Numbers of 2015 Guadalupe Graduates who Attend High School Outside of the 

SMJUHSD 

High School # Guadalupe Students Enrolled % Guadalupe Students Enrolled 

Orcutt Academy High School 8 5.3% 

St. Joseph High School 0 0 

Valley Christian High School 0 0 

 



Findings 

 

In the final analysis, it was almost impossible to study dropout statistics.  It was, however, very possible 

to track and learn from a review of graduation rates. 

 

The review of the literature revealed a strong and early relationship between poor attendance, poor 

behavior and poor academic performance, with future behaviors related to dropping out of school.  

 

This year, the state of California reported a graduation rate of 80.2%.  This report was based on prior 

years that do not align with Guadalupe’s study of its 2015 high school graduating class. The gains, 

though from different years, are still comparable in their growth pattern. 

 

Of the 102 Guadalupe 8th graders who enrolled in a SMJUHSD school as ninth graders in 2011, 79 (or 

77%) graduated on-time with their 2015 graduating class.   

 

Very few Guadalupe students attended other local high schools in the Santa Maria Valley.  Among those 

who did, The Santa Maria Joint Union High School District and Orcutt Academy High School had 102 and 

eight Guadalupe students, respectively, in their 2015 graduating classes. This results in 110 former 

Kermit McKenzie 8th graders, who could have graduated from high school in 2015. 

 

When the 8 McKenzie graduates who attended Orcutt Academy High School are combined with the 102 

McKenzie graduates who attended the SMJUHSD , the total number of Guadalupe students potentially 

eligible for graduation in 2015 are 110. Eighty-seven of these students graduated on time with their 

2015 graduating class. This resulted in a 2015  graduation rate of 79.1%. Commendably, this rate 

parallels the state’s graduation gains of 80.2%.   

 

Seven of the original 102 enrollees for 2011 did not graduate on-time with their class.   

 

Twelve members of the 2011 class transferred, moved to another state, or country, or moved to 

another school in California prior to high school graduation.  

 

One member of the 2011 Kermit McKenzie 8th grade class passed the CA Proficiency Exam, but did not 

achieve a diploma by the time of high school graduation. 

 

In the most recent  state graduation rate study, 75.4% of Hispanics graduated from high school on-time. 

While Hispanic data is not available for the most recent (2015) Guadalupe high school graduating class 

(2015), a review of other Guadalupe district data would suggest that Guadalupe is on track with state 

gains in this data category as well. 

 

 

 

Conclusions and Recommendations 



 

Faculty and staff are to be commended for proceeding on a path that has shown educational gains 

that have staying power through high school to graduation completion. 

 

The 2015 Guadalupe high school graduates have the highest graduation rate of the prior 5 years. Note: 

No data is readily available for years prior to the past 5.  Reasons for these past successes need to be 

identified so that best practices can be institutionalized. 

 

Poor attendance, poor behavior and poor academic performance are all predictors of high school failure, 

from the earliest elementary grades.  The district needs to determine if timely assessments and 

interventions are available to stop drop out symptoms before it is too late.  

 

The Check and Connect program needs to be studied and looked at in parallel with AVID program 

strategies as a possible data-based intervention tool for students at risk of not graduating. 

 

 

Final Word 

 

In the final analysis, K-8 school districts need to work together with their union high school partner 

district to assure high school graduation success.  Structured articulation meeting with key Righetti High 

School and Orcutt Academy High School teachers would support growing awareness of what is working 

and what is not. 

 

Flour questions could begin such articulation:  

1) What current instructional methods and programs are responsible for these gains? 

2) What programs not currently in use could enhance high school graduation rates for 

Guadalupe students? 

3) What assessment systems do we have in place that can serve as early warning systems 

regarding pending failure to graduate? 

4) Finally, would annual articulation between Kermit McKenzie and RHS and OAHS staff 

enhance potential for graduation?  If the answer is yes, what would this look like? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page - 1 - 

 

 

GUADALUPE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 

MINUTES OF REGULAR SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

July 13, 2016 

 

Board President, Anna Marie Michaud, called the regular meeting of July 13, 2016 to order at 

5:30 p.m. and the flag salute was also held at this time. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Anna Marie Michaud, Maria Luisa Baro, Diana Arriola, 

and MaryLou Sabedra-Cuello 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Sheila Marie Cepeda 

 

 STAFF PRESENT:  Ed Cora, Superintendent/Board 

Secretary; Kim Greer, CBO, Alma Wilson, FSC 

Coordinator, Carla Benevedo, Administrative Assistant, 

Juanita Nichols, Exec. Assistant to the Superintendent. 

  

Closed Session  Board adjourned to Closed Session at 5:31 p.m. 

 

Reconvene Board President, Mrs. Michaud called the meeting back to order at 

6:08 p.m. and announced the following: 

 

Regarding the item for Superintendent Cora’s evaluation, during 

closed session the Board voted to give Superintendent Cora a 

positive evaluation for his work for the District.  In compliance 

with the terms of the Superintendent’s contract, the Board will take 

action in light of the positive evaluation.  

 

 Motion was made by Ms. Baro, seconded by Mrs. Arriola and 

carried that during closed session the Board presented 

Superintendent Cora with a positive evaluation.  As such, in 

compliance with Superintendent Cora’s contract, the 

Superintendent is entitled to a step increase and contract extension.  

Therefore, we move that the Board approve the following contract 

terms: 1) a revised contract and contract extension for the years 

2016-2019 in the form provided to the Board, and available to the 

public upon request, 2) a 2% increase to match the 2% increase 

given to other certificated management employees as reflected on 

the revised salary schedule in the form provided to the Board, 3) 

Superintendent Cora’s placement on Step 6 on the revised salary 

schedule effective July 1, 2016, and 4) the annual contribution of 

$10,000 towards a doctorate program of Superintendent Cora’s 

choice in lieu of health and welfare benefits as provided to 

certificated managers. 

 

VOTE:  Ayes:  4 - Baro, Sabedra-Cuello, Michaud, & Arriola 

Absent: 1 – Cepeda 

UNAPPROVED 



Page - 2 - 

 

 

Public Comments: None at this time. 

 

Superintendent’s Reports Mr. Cora acknowledged and thanked the Board for their continued 

support.  Mr. Cora also acknowledged and thanked his office 

support staff, administrators and managers. 

 

Mr. Cora reported the Summer Academy is in its fourth and final 

week with approximately 340 students.   

 

There are a number of facilities projects going on right now at both 

school sites: 

 

 Mary Buren Elementary:  Room 101 and Room 104 are getting 

remodeled and retrofitted.  Special Ed staff will each have their 

own office and working areas. The asphalt between the Learning 

Center and classrooms is getting replaced.  Area will be graded to 

prevent future flooding in that area. 

 

McKenzie Jr. High:  Learning Center new HVAC, exterior is 

getting painted, new desks and chairs in classrooms, and mural 

painting project. 

 

 Family Services Center:  New roof. 

  

 Both school sites and district office will be retrofitted with new 

LED lighting fixtures. 

 

 Mr. Cora is scheduled to attend the annual CALSA Institute next 

week and looking forward to everyone coming back in August. 

 

 Mr. Cora also reported, Mrs. Greer is working closely with Janelle 

Williams, District Financial Advisor with the Santa Barbara 

County Education office on the LCAP budget.  Mr. Cora informed 

the Board, there is a possibility the LCAP budget might have to be 

brought back to the August meeting for approval. 

 

Board Reports Ms. Baro mentioned she has walked by the junior high and has 

seen the work that is in progress.  Her niece has expressed to her 

that she’s excited to see the new changes at the junior high. 
 

 Mrs. Sabedra-Cuello had nothing to report at this time. Hopes 

everyone is enjoying their summer. 
 

Mrs. Arriola reported while attending her grandchildren’s games, 

she’s had the opportunity to see some really nice gymnasiums.  

Mrs. Arriola mentioned she will be attending her grandson’s 

infantry graduation  

 

Consent Agenda A motion was made by Mrs. Sabedra-Cuello, seconded by Ms. 

Baro and carried to approve the following Consent Agenda items: 



Page - 3 - 

 

    

XIII.A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 15,     

2016 and Special Meeting of June 22, 2016. 

XIII.B.   Approval of Warrant Listing Report of Expenditures. 

XIII.C     School Services of California (SSC) Consortium 

Agreement for 2016/2017. 

XIII.D. Agreement between Santa Barbara County Education 

Office and Guadalupe Union School District for 

Professional Development Services 2016/2017. 

 

 Ayes:  Four – Baro, Sabedra-Cuello, Michaud, and Arriola 

 Absent:  One - Cepeda  

Action Items 
 

Resolution #01 Roll Call was taken for the adoption of Resolution 2016/2017-01; 

Functional Responsibilities, as presented. 

 

Ayes:  Four – Baro, Sabedra-Cuello, Michaud, and Arriola 

Absent:  One – Cepeda 

 

Resolution #02 Roll Call was taken for the adoption of Resolution 2016/2017-02; To 

Adopt Board Policy Manual Update on A Formal Basis: BP 

4119.1/4219.1/4319.1 – Civil and Legal Rights (Revised); BP 

4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 – Professional Standards; BP 4119.41/4219.41/ 

4319.41 – Employees with Infectious Disease (Revised); BP/AR 4121 – 

Temporary/ Substitute Personnel (BP added, AR Revised); BP/AR 

4154/4254/4354 – Health and Welfare Benefits (Revised). These policies 

were presented to the Board for review on May 11, 2016, and are now 

being considered for formal board adoption. The board will review and 

consider the adoption of Resolution 2016/2017-02; To Adopt Board 

Policy Manual Update on A Formal Basis – BP 4119.1/4219.1/4319.1 – 

Civil and Legal Rights (Revised); BP 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 – 

Professional Standards; BP 4119.41/4219.41/ 4319.41 – Employees with 

Infectious Disease (Revised); BP/AR 4121 – Temporary/ Substitute 

Personnel (BP added, AR Revised); BP/AR 4154/4254/4354 – Health and 

Welfare Benefits (Revised). 

 

Ayes:  Four – Baro, Sabedra-Cuello, Michaud, and Arriola 

Absent:  One - Cepeda 

 

MOU Motion was made by Mrs. Sabedra-Cuello, seconded by Ms. Baro and 

carried that the Board approve the Memorandum of Understanding 

between Guadalupe Union School District and Community Action 

Commission of Santa Barbara County Children’s Services Program and 

Community Action Partnership of San Luis Obispo County, Inc. Migrant 

and Seasonal Head Start Programs, as presented. 

 

Ayes:  Four – Baro, Sabedra-Cuello, Michaud, and Arriola 

Absent:  One – Cepeda 

 



Page - 4 - 

 

AR/BP 5144.1 CSBA Updated AR/BP 5144.1 – Students:  Suspension and 

Expulsion/Due Process was presented as a First Reading and for board 

review. AR/BP 5144.1 will be presented for formal adoption at the regular 

meeting of September 14, 2016.   

 

 No action was required at this time. 

 

Agreement Motion was made by Mrs. Arriola, seconded by Ms. Baro and carried to 

approve the Agreement for Special Services between the Guadalupe 

Union School District and the law firm of Liebert Cassidy Whitmore, as 

presented. 

 

Ayes:  Four – Baro, Sabedra-Cuello, Michaud, and Arriola 

Absent: One – Cepeda 

 

Townsend Proposal Motion was made by Ms. Baro, seconded by Mrs. Arriola and carried to 

approve the Townsend Public Affairs Proposal of Legislative and Funding 

Advocacy Services, as presented. 

 

Ayes:  Four – Baro, Sabedra-Cuello, Michaud, and Arriola 

Absent:  One – Cepeda 

 

CSM E-Rate Motion was made by Mrs.Sabedra-Cuello, seconded by Ms. Baro and 

carried to approve the Contract for E-Rate Compliance Services between 

Guadalupe Union School District and CSM Consulting, Inc. as presented. 

 

Ayes:  Four – Baro, Sabedra-Cuello, Michaud, and Arriola 

Absent:  One – Cepeda 

 

Compensation Motion was made by Mrs. Arriola, seconded by Mrs. Sabedra-Cuello and 

carried to approve the compensation increase for the Certificated and 

Classified Management, and the Confidential Employees Unit effective 

for the 2016/2017 school year, based on the percentage compensation 

increase approved for the GTA/CTA/NEA and CSEA, as presented. 

 

Ayes:  Four – Baro, Sabedra-Cuello, Michaud, and Arriola 

Absent:  One – Cepeda 

 

Compensation Motion was made by Ms. Baro, seconded by Mrs. Arriola and carried to 

approve the following, as presented: 1) the revised contract terms for 

Superintendent Cora for the years 2016-2019, including a contract 

extension and the revised salary schedule presented at the Board meeting, 

2) Superintendent Cora’s placement on Step 6 on the revised salary 

schedule effective July 1, 2016, and 3) the annual contribution of $10,000 

toward a doctorate program of Superintendent Cora’s choice in lieu of 

health and welfare benefits.   

 

  

Ayes:  Four – Baro, Sabedra-Cuello, Michaud, and Arriola 

Absent:  One – Cepeda 



Page - 5 - 

 

 

Agreement Motion was made by Mrs. Sabedra-Cuello, seconded by Mrs. Arriola and 

carried to approve the Personal Services Agreement between the 

Guadalupe Union School District, Santa Barbara County Public Health 

Department and consultant Kathi DiPeri for the 2016/2017 school year 

with noted correction of ending date to read 7/31/2017. 

 

Ayes:  Four – Baro, Sabedra-Cuello, Michaud, and Arriola 

Absent:  One – Cepeda 

 

CLEAResult Motion was made by Ms. Baro, seconded by Mrs. Sabedra-Cuello and 

carried to approve and ratify the CLEAResult School Energy Efficiency 

(SEE) Program Customer Application, as presented. 

 

Ayes:  Four – Baro, Sabedra-Cuello, Michaud, and Arriola 

Absent:  One – Cepeda 

 

BMA Engagement Motion was made by Mrs. Arriola, seconded by Ms. Baro and carried to 

approve and ratify the BMA Mechanical Engagement Letter for the 

Kermit McKenzie Jr. High School Site HVAC project, as presented. 

 

Ayes:  Four – Baro, Sabedra-Cuello, Michaud, and Arriola 

Absent:  One – Cepeda 

  

Items Scheduled for Information/Discussion 

 

A. General Functions 

 

1. Board Self-Evaluation 2015/2016.  Mr. Cora announced the Board Self-

Evaluation for 2015/2016 has been set up with CSBA with a window 

period of July 18 through midnight on July 29, 2016. 

2. Board/Superintendent Retreat – August 1, 2016, 4:00 pm at the District 

Office.  A light snack will be provided. 

3. Williams Uniforms Complaints Quarterly Report (April-June). 

 

B. Employees/Personnel 

 

1. Family Services Center Staff Transfer from Community Action 

Commission (CAC) to Guadalupe Union School District (GUSD) 

Employees.  Mr. Cora informed the Board he is working with our district 

legal counsel and lead negotiator on how to acquire three (3) (CAC) 

employees working at the Family Services Center as district employees. It 

is anticipated to present the job descriptions and employees up for board 

approval either at the August 2016 or September 2016 board meeting. Mr. 

Cora reported he has met with the three employees and stressed to them, 

their continued employment will continue as pending availability of grant 

funding, currently funds their positions. 

 

2. Music/Band Teacher – After a brief discussion, it was decided to table this 

item after the November General Election. 



Page - 6 - 

 

 

C. Child Nutrition/Food Services 

 

1. Second Reading of Amended/Revised Board Policy 5030 – Student 

Wellness.  Policy was presented as a second reading and is scheduled for 

formal adoption at the regular meeting of August 10, 2016. 

 

D. Finance and Business 

 

1. Fund Balance Summary – June 30 2016. 

 

E. Pupil Personnel 

 

1.  Interdistrict Summary Report – July 2016. 

 

Adjournment A motion was made by Mrs. Sabedra-Cuello, seconded by Ms. Baro and 

carried to adjourn this regular meeting of July 13, 2016 at 7:43 pm. 

 

Next Meeting(s): 

 

(Special Meeting) Board/Superintendent Retreat, August 1, 2016; 4:00 pm at District 

Office Conference Room, 4465 Ninth Street, Guadalupe, CA 93434 

 

Next Regular Meeting: August 10, 2016, 5:30 p.m. at Mary Buren Elementary School, 

1050 Peralta Street, Guadalupe, CA 93434. 

 

 

Board of Trustees  

Approved:  



  

GUADALUPE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD of TRUSTEES 

 

 

MISSION STATEMENT (Revised 8/1/16): 
 

"The Guadalupe Union School District will provide each student the academic and social skills that will assist them in becoming 

high school graduates as well as college and career ready, independent thinkers, lifelong learners, and responsible, productive 

members of society. We will educate students in a safe environment and in a continuing partnership with parents and community." 

 

VISION STATEMENT: 
 

“Students today, our future tomorrow!” 

 

BOARD PRIORITY AREAS: 

 Academic Success 

 Safety  

 Student Values 

 Technology 

 

THE GUSD BOARD OF TRUSTEES VALUE AND BELIEVE IN (Revised 8/1/16)… 

 

 Ensuring our children receive the finest education in a safe and positive environment 

 

 Using technology to provide students an educational foundation to prepare for 21st Century careers 

 

 Teaching students how to maintain and respect human contact 

 

 Teaching values 

 

 Partnering with parents and the community to ensure every student reaches their full potential in order to succeed in reaching 

their educational goals    
 

 

Adopted March 11, 2015 – GUSD Board of Trustees 



















































































  
Page 1 

 
  

GUADALUPE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Resolution 2016/2017-03 
 

Proposition 51 

Kindergarten through Community College Public Education 

Facilities Bond Act of 2016 
 

WHEREAS, the California Constitution finds public education is a State responsibility 

in Article IX Section 5; and 

 

WHEREAS, Article 1 Section 28 states that public schools shall be safe, secure and 

peaceful; and 

 

WHEREAS, the State has met its constitutional responsibilities since 1982 by providing 

consistent State bond resources through programs contained in Division 1, Part 10, 

Article 12 and Article 12.5 of the Education Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the State is out of school facility funds and cannot provide the State match 

for almost $2 billion in projects filed under current law; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Guadalupe Union School District has $20 million in facility need 

which may be partially funded by State bonds; and 

 

WHEREAS, Proposition 51 - the Kindergarten through Community College Public Education 

Facilities Bond Act of 2016 - provides for renovation and upgrade of existing classrooms, 

construction of new classrooms to accommodate growth, and for career technical 

education facilities to provide job training to meet the trained workforce needs of 

California’s employers; and 

 

WHEREAS, the California unemployment rate is greater than the national unemployment rate; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, 13,000 middle class jobs are created for each $1 billion in school facility 

infrastructure investment; and 

 

WHEREAS, these jobs will be created throughout California and will include almost all 

building trades; and 

 

WHEREAS, the new Local Control Funding Formula and Local Control Accountability Plan 

are intended to improve educational achievement for all students but do not provide 

dedicated facilities funding; and 

 

WHEREAS, quality 21st Century school facilities designed for student needs of today and 

tomorrow enhance academic achievement and further the State’s academic goals; and 

 

 



  
Page 2 

 
  

 

WHEREAS, Proposition 51 - the Kindergarten through Community College Public Education 

Facilities Bond Act of 2016 - will not raise State taxes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Proposition 51 - Kindergarten through Community College Public Education 

Facilities Bond Act of 2016 - State matching funds will reduce the need for additional 

local property taxes for school facilities. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Guadalupe Union School District 

supports Proposition 51 - the Kindergarten through Community College Public Education 

Facilities Bond Act of 2016. 

 

Passed, approved, and adopted this 10
th

 day of August, 2016. 

 

 

Ayes:  

 

Noes: 

 

Abesent: 

 

              
       Anna Marie Santillan Michaud, Board President 

       Board of Trustees 



 Page 1 

Guadalupe Union School District           Position Description 
Position:   

 Case Manager/Educator        

Position Number:   

Department/Site:  Healthy Start Family Services Center FLSA:   

Reports to/Evaluated by:   

 Healthy Start Family Services Coordinator 

Salary Grade:  114 

Salary Grade:  117 w/BA Degree 
 

Summary 
 

Under general supervision provides case management services to youth and family in 

development of natural support system.  Case management services include: client 

assessment, monitoring of client progress, crisis intervention, and community referrals.  

Components of the program are development of and linkage to community resources; i.e. 

education, treatment providers, work programs and employers, housing, social/recreation, 

community mentors, legal, and family empowerment through facilitating leadership, 

volunteer internships and training. 
 
 

Essential Duties and Responsibilities 
 

 Responsible for case management of clients to achieve the goals, objectives, and work plan 

according to established program standards and policies and procedures. 

 

 Maintains ongoing contact with parents and guardians of all clients receiving services. 

 

 Perform timely administrative duties: including documentation of services; preparation of reports 

and other required statistical information; etc.  

 

 Maintain productivity level to meet program outcomes.  

 

 Exhibit out of the box creative qualities to engage a diverse population not only as recipients of 

service but involvement in making systemic change through leadership and internship training to 

grow and advance community wellbeing. 

 

 Supports the work of the Program Manager in assisting in skill building and best practices for 

client care.  

 

 Maintains positive and responsive on-going contact with community partners, funders, and others 

associated with client cases. 

 

 Attends and actively participates in community meetings, outreach events, scheduled staff 

meetings and trainings.  

 

 Represent program and conduct presentations to community groups and professionals. 

 

 Participate in the monitoring and evaluating of service effectiveness and customer satisfaction. 

 

 Assist in program development activities. Proactively offers ideas for program development and 

take the lead in implementing new programmatic changes.  

 

 Adheres to confidentiality and HIPPA regulations.  

 

Performs other duties as assigned that support the overall objective of the position. 



 Page 2 

 

Qualifications 
 

Knowledge, Skills and Abilities 

Language Skills Ability to read, analyzes, and interprets general business periodicals, 

professional journals, technical procedures, or governmental regulations.  Ability to write 

reports, business correspondence, and procedure manuals.  Ability to effectively present 

information and respond to questions from groups of managers, clients, customers, and the 

general public. 
 

Mathematical Skills Ability to add, subtract, multiply, and divide in all units of measure, using 

whole numbers, common fractions, and decimals.  Ability to compute rate, ratio, and percent 

and to draw and interpret bar graphs. 
 

Reasoning Ability Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete 

variables in situations where only limited standardization exists. Ability to interpret a variety of 

instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form. 
 

Computer Skills To perform this position successfully, an individual should have knowledge of 

Internet software; Spreadsheet software, Word Processing software and develop an 

understanding of specialized database applications. 
 

Other Skills and Abilities   Strong counseling and parent training skills required.  Knowledge 

of symptoms and risk factors for children.   Bilingual required (English/Spanish), with fluency 

in verbal and written Spanish.  Ability to use good judgment, mentors others, make quick and 

appropriate decisions and maintain calm, professional demeanor and interaction in 

difficult/potential crisis situations. 
 

Other Qualifications Some out-of-office travel required routinely with region. May travel 

within County about 10% of the time.  Knowledge of HIPAA compliance requirements. 
 

 Physical Abilities 

While performing the duties of this position the employee is regularly required to sit and talk or 

hear. The employee is frequently required to stand and walk. The employee is occasionally 

required to use hands to finger, handle, or feel and reach with hands and arms. The employee 

must occasionally lift and/or move up to 25 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by this 

position include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception 

and ability to adjust focus. 
 

 Education and Experience 

Bachelor’s Degree in Psychology, Sociology, Social Work, Human Services, Human 

Development or other behavior sciences field and one year of experience in a social services 

setting such as working directly with children, families and young adults, or in a case 

management, mental health or family services agency. Demonstration of successful 

performance as a Case Manager, up to two years equivalent education may be substituted for 

related experience on a year-for-year basis. 
 

 Licenses and Certificates 

Certificates, Licenses, Registrations Current valid California Driver's License with 

ability to qualify for coverage under Agency insurance plan. 
 

 Work Environment  

While performing the duties of this position, the employee is occasionally exposed to outside 

weather conditions. The noise level in the work environment is usually quiet. 

 

Adopted: 

Guadalupe Union School District Board of Trustees 



 

 

 

GUADALUPE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

 
BURNHAM BENEFITS INSURANCE SERVICES 
Consulting Services Agreement 
 

 

Maggie Lepore, Senior Account Executive 

 

 

 
 

  

AUG 

2016 



 2 

Burnham Benefits Insurance Services Consulting Agreement 

 
This Consulting Agreement, hereinafter referred to as “Agreement” is between Guadalupe Union 
School District, hereinafter referred to as “Client” and Burnham Benefits Insurance Services, 
hereinafter referred to as “Consultant.” 

WHEREAS, Client wishes to obtain the assistance of Consultant with strategic benefit planning, 
design, funding, administration, and communication with respect to its employee benefit programs;  

WHEREAS, Consultant has superior knowledge and expertise in assisting employers with designing 
and servicing employee benefit plans; and 

WHEREAS, the parties wish to set forth their respective expectations; 

Now, therefore, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
mutually acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Scope of Services to be Provided by Consultant 

A. Services. Consultant will provide Client with consulting, actuarial, and brokerage services for 
the following benefit programs listed below:   

 Medical Insurance 

 Dental Insurance 

 Vision Insurance 

 Life Insurance 

 Disability Insurance 

 Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance 

 Health Care Flexible Spending Account 

 Dependent Care Flexible Spending Account 

 Long Term Care 

 Voluntary Benefits 
 

B. Strategic Benefit Planning. Consultant will provide assistance in developing overall plan 
benchmarks and targets to ensure that the plan meets and clearly states the objectives of 
Client and its employees. 

C. Benefit Design. Consultant will help to ensure that benefit designs are consistent with the 
strategic benchmarks and targets set forth in the strategic benefit planning process.  

D. Administration. Consultant will identify core administrative services, assess vendor 
performance, and manage vendor relationships to provide appropriate program 
administration.   

E. Funding. Consultant will advise and counsel regarding program funding alternatives, 
including review fee proposals, recommend budget rates, employee contribution rates, and 
COBRA rates; select and procure appropriate stop loss terms; and monitor program costs 
against expectations. 

F. Communication. Consultant will assist in drafting employee communications including 
benefit summaries, and assist in the review of plan documents and insurance certificates 
during the planning and enrollment process. 



 3 

G. Compliance Tools & Legislative Information. Consultant will provide informational materials 
on legislative developments impacting employee benefit plans, including but not limited to 
topics such as PPACA, COBRA, HIPAA, and Section 125.   

H. Meetings with Client and Vendors. Services will include attendance at and facilitation of 
regular meetings with Client and vendors as needed to facilitate program management 
including day-to-day operations and planning program changes.  

a) Consultant shall meet with Client on a monthly basis to review all activities performed by 
Consultant during the prior quarter. The meetings will include discussion of business 
concerns and monthly financial document review including presentations of options and 
recommendations. 

b) Consultant shall meet with Client quarterly to discuss review of the program, state of the 
marketplace, progress made toward strategic plan, and developments within Client's 
organization. 

c) Consultant shall meet with Client semi-annually to review the stewardship report for the 
preceding year, create a stewardship report outlining the goals and objectives for the 
upcoming year, and agree upon Consultant's fees for the next twelve month period. 

I. Day-to-Day Administrative Issues. Consultant shall provide assistance in the daily 
administration of programs, including resolution of vendor service issues and addressing 
questions and concerns raised by Client's employees and management, including hearing and 
rendering opinions on claims brought before Appeals Committee. 

J. Stewardship Report. Consultant will develop and implement a detailed account stewardship 
plan, which should include, but not be limited to, the following: 

a) Specific quantifiable and measurable goals and objectives for Consultant's team relating 
to Client's programs; and 

b) Detailed work plans which lay out the account management plan, work schedules, areas 
of concentration, timing, and information requirements. 

K. Data Analysis.  Upon receipt of current claims data, Consultant will provide Client with a 
summary health plan management dashboard analyzing health care claims paid during the 
previous of up to 24 months. 

2. Disclosure and Record Keeping 

A. Full Disclosure.  Client has the right to approve any arrangements and/or the utilization of 
any intermediaries in connection with, or arising out of, or in any way related to Client's 
insurance and risk management program.  Consultant must seek approval from Client prior 
to the use of any of the above in connection with the Client's insurance and risk management 
program. 

B. Record Keeping.  Consultant will maintain accurate and current files including, but not 
limited to, insurance policies and correspondence with insurers or brokers in accordance 
with industry standard record retention practice or as otherwise directed by Client. 

 
3. Term & Termination  

A. Term. This initial term of this Agreement shall be one year, commencing on October 1, 2016 
and ending September 30, 2019 (“Initial Term”).   

B. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by either party only as follows: 



 4 

a) Effective upon ninety (90) days advance written notice to the other party stating that 
such other party is in breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement, provided such 
breach (if able to be cured) is not cured within thirty (30) days after the notice is 
received;    

b) effective upon ninety (90) days advance written notice to the other party given with or 
without reason; provided such notice is given after the Initial Term; or 

c) By mutual written agreement of the parties.  
 
4. Cost of Services 

Consultant professional fees are based upon time expended by specific individuals.  Client agrees 
to pay Consultant professional fees as outlined in Exhibit 1, attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference.  These fees are payable in monthly installments and Consultant agrees to submit 
invoices to Client on a monthly basis. 

Additional programs and services will be provided on a project basis for an additional fee to be 
disclosed in writing and shall be undertaken upon mutual written agreement between 
Consultant and Client.  Such programs and services may include, but not be limited to Milliman 
actuarial services, retiree medical plans, special employee surveys, printed employee 
communication materials, and additional voluntary benefit programs. 

 
5. Personnel 

Consultant will assign its personnel according to the needs of Client and according to the 
disciplines required to complete the appointed task in a professional manner. Consultant retains 
the right to substitute personnel with reasonable cause. The Account Management Team 
consists of the following individuals: 

 
Primary Service Team:               
 
Maggie Lepore, Senior Consultant 
Mary Valdivieso, Senior Account Manager 
 
Additional Key Resources:        
 
Ryan Meissner, Lead Underwriter 
Glen Morse, Underwriter 
Richard Asensio, Director of Compliance 
Leslie Ouellette, Director of Client Communications 
 

6. Client's Responsibilities 
 

Client agrees to provide Consultant with the necessary data and records that Consultant requires 
in order to perform the services Consultant agrees to perform under the terms of this 
Agreement.  Such data and records include, but are not limited to, written plan materials, 
contracts, policies, notices, enrollment data, disenrollment data, and census data.  The data and 
records will be provided as of the Effective Date, and will be updated promptly and timely as 
necessary throughout the term of this Agreement.  Consultant’s ability to provide Client with the 
services provided for in this Agreement is conditioned upon Consultant’s receipt of accurate and 
timely information from Client.  Consultant will not independently verify or authenticate 
information provided by or on behalf of Client.  Client shall be solely responsible for the accuracy 
and completeness of such information and other documentation furnished to Consultant. 



 5 

Client agrees to notify Consultant as soon as possible of any proposed amendments to the plans' 
legal documents to the extent that the amendments would affect Consultant in the performance 
of its obligations under this Agreement.   

 
7. Records and Protected Health Information 

Consultant understands and agrees to limit its use and disclosure of protected health information 
as described, attached hereto and incorporated by reference. 

8. Independent Contractor 

 It is understood and agreed that Consultant is engaged by Client to perform services under this 
Agreement as an independent contractor.  Consultant shall use reasonable efforts to follow 
written, oral, or electronically transmitted (i.e., sent via facsimile or e-mail) instructions from 
Client as to policy and procedure. 

 

9. Fiduciary Responsibility 

Client acknowledges that:  
 

A. Consultant shall have no discretionary authority or discretionary control respecting 
the management of any of the employee benefit plans;  

B. Consultant shall exercise no authority or control with respect to management or 
disposition of the assets of Client's employee benefit plans; and  

C. Consultant shall perform services pursuant to this Agreement in a non-fiduciary 
capacity.   

D. Consultant will participate on Second Level Appeals Committee in a non-fiduciary 
capacity. 
 

Consultant is solely an insurance broker and consultant, and has no discretionary control over 
plan assets; thus, in the event Client’s employee welfare benefit plan or plans are deemed to be 
governed by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”), Client, and not 
Consultant, shall be and is the ERISA fiduciary for the plan or plans. 

 
10. Legal Compliance 

 
Consultant is not licensed to practice law and the services provided under the terms of this 
Agreement are not intended as a substitute for legal advice.  Client, and not Consultant, shall be 
solely responsible for complying with, and consulting with legal counsel with respect to, its legal 
obligations under the terms of this Agreement, as well as Client’s compliance obligations under 
federal and state insurance, employee benefits, privacy, and labor laws and regulations 
(including, but not limited to, ERISA, HIPAA, COBRA, and the Internal Revenue Code).  Client is 
also solely responsible for determining, and consulting with legal counsel with respect to, the 
legal sufficiency of written documents relating to Client’s employee welfare benefit plans, 
including but not limited to plan documents, summary plan descriptions, insurance policies and 
contracts, notices, and communications materials, including those that may be provided by 
Consultant.  The responsibilities of Client include, but are not limited to, meeting it’s reporting 
and disclosure obligations under ERISA, the filing of the annual Form 5500, conducting any 
discrimination testing that may be required under the Internal Revenue Code for its plans, and 



 6 

complying with federal and state privacy laws (including HIPAA).  Client should consult legal 
counsel before entering into any insurance policies, contracts, or vendor arrangements.   
 
Consultant shall maintain in effect all licenses it is required by California law to maintain in order 
to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
11. Confidentiality 

 
Each party (in such capacity, “Recipient”) will not access or use Confidential Information of the 
other (in such capacity, “Discloser”) for any purpose other than performance of its obligations or 
receipt of benefits hereunder and shall maintain such information in the strictest confidence.  
Recipient may disclose the Discloser’s Confidential Information to Recipient’s employees, 
attorneys, advisors, and contractors who have a legitimate “need to know”, provided that 
Recipient ensures that all such entities and persons are obligated to and do comply with 
confidentiality obligations consistent with (and no less restrictive than) this Section 11.  The term 
“Confidential Information” means the provisions of this Agreement (which shall be the 
Confidential Information of both parties, subject to the following sentence), and any and all 
information, written or oral, provided or made available by or on behalf of one party or its 
affiliates, contractors, or vendors to the other party or its affiliates, contractors, or vendors in 
connection with this Agreement or the parties’ relationship hereunder, whether or not 
designated as confidential.  Consultant may disclose an accurate summary of the relationship 
formed hereunder, provided that Consultant does not reveal any associated pricing information, 
or other relationship details not included in prior disclosures that Client has previously and 
expressly designated as being excluded from this disclosure right.  Information of a third party to 
whom a party owes a duty of confidentiality will be treated as Confidential Information of that 
party if it meets the description above.  However, (a) Confidential Information does not include 
information that: was or is publicly available other than as a result of breach of this Agreement 
by Recipient; was or is lawfully received by the Recipient free of any obligation of confidentiality, 
or is independently developed by or on behalf of the Recipient without the use of the Discloser’s 
Confidential Information; and (b) Recipient may disclose the Discloser’s Confidential Information 
to the extent such disclosure is necessary in connection with the enforcement of this Agreement; 
or necessary to comply with any legal or regulatory requirements, provided that the Recipient 
gives the Discloser prompt notice of the compelled disclosure and cooperates with the Discloser 
in seeking a protective order or any other protections available to limit the disclosure of the 
Discloser’s Confidential Information. 

 
All information is agreed to be handled in a manner consistent with State of California and 
Federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”) guidelines, and a 
separate Business Associate Agreement will be executed to this end.  The form that the Business 
Associate Agreement shall take is attached. 

  
12. Insurance  

 
During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall procure and maintain for itself and its 
employees all insurance coverage as required by federal or state law and shall maintain at least 
the minimum coverage limits set forth below: 

 
A. Professional Liability or Errors & Omissions Liability Coverage with minimum limits of 

$2,000,000 per claim and general aggregate. 



 7 

Notwithstanding the above, Consultant is allowed to maintain deductibles and self-insured 
retentions under all insurance above without exception.  Said certificate will include a provision 
whereby the insurer will endeavor to provide fifteen (15) days notice prior to coverage 
cancellation by either Consultant or insurer. 

 
13. Limitation of Liability 

 
Consultant shall not be liable for any lost profits or for any indirect, incidental, consequential, 
punitive or other special damages suffered by Client arising out of or related to this Agreement, 
even if advised of the possibility of such damages. 

 
14. Indemnity 
 

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant and Client agree to save, indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless each other from any and all liability, claims, suits, actions, arbitration 
proceedings, administrative proceedings, and regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses, or 
any injury or damage of any kind whatsoever, whether actual, alleged or threatened, 
attorney fees, court costs, and any other costs of any nature without restriction incurred in 
relation to, as a consequence of, or arising out of, the performance of this Agreement, and 
attributable to the fault of the other. Following a determination of the percentage of fault 
and or liability by agreement between the Consultant and Client or a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the party responsible for liability to the other will indemnify the other party to 
this Agreement for the percentage of liability determined. 

 
B. Nothing to the contrary withstanding, any limitation on liability and/or remedies set forth 

herein does not apply in the event that the services performed under the Agreement results 
in injury or death to persons or damage to tangible property. 

 
15. Disputes / Arbitration 

 
In the event of a dispute between the parties arising out of, respecting, caused by, concerning, or 
relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, or the relationship or activities of the parties 
to this Agreement, or the Limitation of Liability and Indemnity provisions of this Agreement (the 
“Dispute”), and if the Dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, the parties agree first to try 
in good faith to settle the Dispute by mediation administered by the American Arbitration 
Association under its Commercial Mediation Rules before resorting to arbitration.  Any such 
mediation shall be completed within sixty (60) days of the time notice of a Dispute is given by 
one party, unless the parties agree to extend the time limits. 
If mediation does not resolve the Dispute, the parties shall arbitrate the Dispute. The arbitration 
shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Commercial Arbitration 
Rules (except as modified herein), and judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator may be 
entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof within the State of California.  Arbitration shall 
take place in the State of California, County of Orange.  The arbitrator shall provide a decision in 
writing stating his/her reason and rationale for the decision.  Prior to the arbitration, the parties 
shall have the right to demand from one another the disclosure of relevant and discoverable 
documents, as well as a list of witnesses the other party intends to call at the arbitration, and a 
summary of the issues to be raised, which information shall be provided two (2) weeks in 
advance of the arbitration date.  Arbitration shall be the parties’ exclusive remedy.  



 8 

14.   Miscellaneous 

This Agreement, together with all Exhibits, constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties, and any other warranties or agreements are hereby superseded.  No amendment, 
modification, or waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and 
signed by an appropriate officer or duly authorized employee of each party to the Agreement.   

If any provision set forth in the Agreement is invalid or unenforceable under any law, the validity 
of the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected and such provision shall be deemed 
modified to the minimum extent necessary to make it consistent with applicable law.  The 
modified provision shall be enforceable and enforced, provided it does not impose on any party 
obligations or benefits that are materially greater than those provided under the original 
provision.  

Under no circumstances shall failure by either party to insist upon compliance with any provision 
of this Agreement, or either party’s delay or failure to exercise of any right or remedy under this 
Agreement, operate to waive or modify any such provision, right or remedy or render it 
unenforceable as to any other time or occurrence.  

Neither party may assign all or a portion of its rights or duties hereunder without the prior 
written consent of the other party.  
 

In the event of any litigation or arbitration between the parties arising out of, respecting, caused 
by, concerning, or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, or the relationship or 
activities of the parties to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 
 

Any notice, demand, or request given in accordance with this Agreement shall be given by 

personal delivery; by messenger delivery; by facsimile transmission; by placing said notice in the 

United States mail, registered or first-class, postage prepaid; or by sending such notice via an 

overnight courier service.  Notice shall be deemed given when delivered to a party (personally, 

by messenger, or by an overnight courier service); when the facsimile transmission occurs; or 

two days after the date the notice is deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid. 

        Notice shall be given to Consultant as follows: 
 
 2211 Michelson Drive, Suite 1200, Irvine, CA 92612 

ATTN: Maggie Lepore 
 

         Notice shall be given to Client as follows:  

Guadalupe Union School District 

ATTN:  Ed Cora, Superintendent 

4465 9th Street, Guadalupe, CA 93434 

  

Each party to this Agreement has had the opportunity to consult with counsel of its choice as to 
the form and content of this Agreement and the advisability of executing it.  The normal rule of 
construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party will 
not be employed in any interpretation of this Agreement. 

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the respective successor and permitted assigns of 
each party, and shall be binding upon the successors and permitted assigns of each party. 



 9 

Neither party will be responsible for any delay or failure in the performance of its duties caused 
by forces or events beyond its reasonable control. 

Nothing in this Agreement is intended to confer upon any other party any rights or remedies 
hereunder, and no third party may claim to be a beneficiary of this Agreement. 

The validity and interpretation of the provisions of this Agreement will be governed by the laws 
of California without regard to any provisions governing conflict of laws, and both parties agree 
that, subject to the provision entitled “Disputes/Arbitration,” the exclusive jurisdiction and the 
proper venue for any action brought hereunder will be the court of California or the federal 
courts in California. 

 
GUADALUPE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

   

Signature  Date 

 

 

  

Title   

 
 
 
 

BURNHAM BENEFITS INSURANCE SERVICES 
 

   

Signature  Date 

 
 

  

Title   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 10 

Exhibit #1 – Consulting Fees 

Full-Services Service Description Fee 
Benefit Program Development and Management 
 Strategic plan development and management 
 Continual ACA law guidance and support 
 Disease Management process review 
 Assist in orientation of new HR staff 
 Cost analysis, market study and carrier trend analysis 
 Comprehensive plan design assessment 
 Contribution strategy evaluation 
 Benchmarking data research and reports 
 Claims analysis 
 Legal and compliance updates 

Full Services Contract:  
 

$28,000 Annual Fee  
Paid in 12 monthly installments  

beginning October 1, 2016 
 
 

Underwriting/ Actuarial Services 
 Monthly claim dashboard reporting 
 Funding level adequacy and review 
 PBM marketing and discount analysis 
 Network discount reporting 
 Renewal evaluation 
 Predictive modeling of plan changes 
 Comprehensive assessment of health plan reporting 
 Fee based actuarial services with Milliman 

 
included in above fee 

Implementation Variables 
 Implementation time line on projects 
 PPO and HMO network analysis 
 Plan design alternatives 
 Client access to MyWave™ 
 Contract and SPD accuracy review 
 Continual account stewardship reporting 

Included in above fee 

Employee Perception Variables 
 Employee surveys 
 Total compensation statements 
 HR Connection Employee Web Portal 
 Open enrollment support 
 Face-to-Face presentations 
 Health Fair  support 
 Webinar meetings 

Included in above fee 

Value Added Service Variables 
 Client Profile 
 Wellness initiatives and support 
 Custom Communications (Open enrollment & New Hire) 
 Compliance/Legislative updates  
 Access to Burnham’s Director of Compliance 
 HR Consulting, training, & legal resources through Think HR 
 HIPPA review and compliance audit 
 Face to face meetings as needed per LMUSD 

Included in above fee 

Professional Communications Preparation 
 ACA law required notices 
 Benefit Enrollment Brochures 
 PowerPoint Presentations 
 Universal enrollment form 

Included in above fee 

Affordable Care Act Compliance & Modeling 
 Actuarial Value Assessment 
 Affordability Report 
 Cadillac Tax Projection 
 Play or Pay Financial Modeling 
 Variable Hour Assessment 
 Exchange Notice Delivery 

Included in above fee  



 11 

 
 
 

 ACA Compliance Audit 
 Summary of Compliance Recommendations/Next Steps.   
 ACA Webinars 
 ACA Educational Employee Meetings 
 ACA Updates via electronic newsletters, articles and briefs 

Marketing Services 
 Data Collection for marketing plans 
 Determine markets to bid  

o Fully insured, Self-funded program, JPAs, Trusts 
 Creation of Request for Proposal on behalf of District 
 Timeline development and RFP response monitoring 
 Analyze and negotiate quotes 
 Illustrate detailed comparisons, including employee portions, 

district portions, benefits, and all differences from current 
 Present detailed overview to the District 
 Determine finalists and conduct interviews of vendor 

candidates (with the District) 
 Support in implementation of new plan 

 
included in above fee 



Guadalupe Union School District 
Board Policy 
 
Students 

STUDENT WELLNESS  

 
The Governing Board recognizes the link between student health and learning and desires to 
provide a comprehensive program promoting healthy eating and physical activity for district 
students.  The Superintendent or designee shall coordinate and align district efforts to support 
student wellness through health education, physical education and activity, health services, 
nutrition services, psychological and counseling services, and a safe and healthy school 
environment. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies for promoting 
staff wellness and for involving parents/guardians and the community in reinforcing students' 
understanding and appreciation of the importance of a healthy lifestyle. 
 
(cf. 1020 ­ Youth Services) 
(cf. 3513.3 ­ Tobacco­Free Schools) 
(cf. 3514 ­ Environmental Safety) 
(cf. 5131.6 ­ Alcohol and Other Drugs) 
(cf. 5131.61 ­ Drug Testing) 
(cf. 5131.62 ­ Tobacco) 
(cf. 5131.63 ­ Steroids) 
(cf. 5141 ­ Health Care and Emergencies) 
(cf. 5141.22 ­ Infectious Diseases) 
(cf. 5141.3 ­ Health Examinations) 
(cf. 5141.31 ­ Immunizations) 
(cf. 5141.32 ­ Health Screening for School Entry) 
(cf. 5141.6 ­ School Health Services) 
(cf. 6142.1 ­ Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Education) 
(cf. 6164.2 ­ Guidance/Counseling Services) 
 
School Health Council/Committee 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall encourage parents/guardians, students, food service 
employees, physical education teachers, school health professionals, Board members, school 
administrators, and members of the public to participate in the development, implementation, 
and periodic review and update of the district's student wellness policy.  (42 USC 1758b) 
 
To fulfill this requirement, the Superintendent or designee may appoint a school health council 
or other district committee whose membership shall include representatives of these groups. 
He/she also may invite participation of other groups or individuals, such as health educators, 



curriculum directors, counselors, before­ and after­school program staff, health practitioners, 
and/or others interested in school health issues. 

STUDENT WELLNESS ​(continued) 
 
(cf. 1220 ­ Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 9140 ­ Board Representatives) 
 
The school health council/committee shall advise the district on health­related issues, activities, 
policies, and programs. At the discretion of the Superintendent or designee, the duties of the 
council/committee may also include the planning, implementation, and evaluation of activities to 
promote health within the school or community.  Recess should be encouraged to take place 
before lunch.  
 
Goals for Nutrition, Physical Activity, and Other Wellness Activities 
 
The Board shall adopt goals for nutrition promotion and education, physical activity, and other 
school­based activities that promote student wellness.  (42 USC 1758b) 
 
(cf. 0000 ­ Vision) 
(cf. 0200 ­ Goals for the School District) 
 
The District's nutrition education and physical education programs shall be based on research, 
shall be consistent with the expectations established in the State's curriculum frameworks and 
content standards, and shall be designed to build the skills and knowledge that all students need 
to maintain a healthy lifestyle. 
∙ The Director, nutrition services and physical education teachers form a co­chair to 

oversee the goals for nutrition, physical activity, and other Wellness activities. 

 

(cf. 6011 ­ Academic Standards) 

(cf. 6142.7 ­ Physical Education and Activity) 

(cf. 6142.8 ­ Comprehensive Health Education) 

(cf. 6143 ­ Courses of Study) 

 

The nutrition education program shall include, but is not limited to, information about the 
benefits of healthy eating for learning, disease prevention, weight management, oral health, and 
include the school nurse.  Nutrition education shall be provided as part of the health education 
program and, as appropriate, shall be integrated into other academic subjects in the regular 
educational program, before­/after­school programs, summer learning programs, and school 



garden programs. 
 
(cf. 5148.2 ­ Before/After School Programs) 
(cf. 6177 ­ Summer Learning Programs) 
 
To reinforce the district's nutrition education program, the Board prohibits the marketing and 
advertising and​ selling​ of non­nutritious foods and beverages through signage, vending machine 
fronts, logos, scoreboards, school supplies, advertisements in school publications, coupon or 
incentive programs, free giveaways, or other means. 
 

STUDENT WELLNESS ​(continued) 
  
(cf. 1325 ­ Advertising and Promotion) 
 
All students shall be provided opportunities to be physically active on a regular basis. 
Opportunities for moderate to vigorous physical activity shall be provided through physical 
education and recess and may also be provided through school athletic programs, extracurricular 
programs, before­/after­school programs, summer learning programs, programs encouraging 
students to walk or bicycle to and from school, in­class physical activity breaks, and other 
structured and unstructured activities. 
 
(cf. 5142.2 ­ Safe Routes to School Program) 
(cf. 6145 ­ Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
(cf. 6145.2 ­ Athletic Competition) 
 
The Board may enter into a joint use agreement or memorandum of understanding to make 
district facilities or grounds available for recreational or sports activities outside the school day 
and/or to use community facilities to expand students' access to opportunity for physical activity. 
 
(cf. 1330.1 ­ Joint Use Agreements) 
 
Professional development shall be regularly offered and encouraged to health education and 
physical education teachers, coaches, activity supervisors, food services staff, and other staff as 
appropriate to enhance their health knowledge and skills. 
 
(cf. 4131 ­ Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 ­ Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 ­ Staff Development) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may disseminate health information and/or the district's student 
wellness policy to parents/guardians through district or school newsletters, handouts, 
parent/guardian meetings, district and school websites, and other communications. Outreach to 
parents/guardians shall emphasize the relationship between student health and academic 
performance. 



 
(cf. 1100 ­ Communication with the Public) 
(cf. 1112 ­ Media Relations) 
(cf. 1113 ­ District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1114 ­ District­Sponsored Social Media) 
(cf. 6020 ­ Parent Involvement) 
 
In order to ensure that students have access to comprehensive health services, the district may 
provide access to health services at or near district schools and/or may provide referrals to 
community resources. 
 

The Board recognizes that a safe, positive school environment is also conducive to students' 
STUDENT WELLNESS ​(continued) 
 
physical and mental health and thus prohibits bullying and harassment of all students, including 
bullying on the basis of weight or health condition. 
 
(cf. 5131.2 ­ Bullying) 
(cf. 5145.3 ­ Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall encourage staff to serve as positive role models for healthy 
eating and physical fitness.  He/she shall promote worksite wellness programs and may provide 
opportunities for regular physical activity among employees. 
 
Nutritional Guidelines for Foods Available at School 
 
 
For all foods available on each campus during the school day, the district shall adopt nutritional 
guidelines which are consistent with 42 USC 1773 and 1779 and federal regulations and which 
support the objectives of promoting student health and reducing childhood obesity. (42 USC 
1758b) 
 
In order to maximize the district's ability to provide nutritious meals and snacks, all district 
schools shall participate in available federal school nutrition programs, including the National 
School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs and after­school snack programs, to the extent 
possible. When approved by the California Department of Education, the district may sponsor a 
summer meal program.  All foods sold at schools will follow USDA Smart Snacks guidelines 
and Assembly Bill 626 standards.  Foods that are brought in for birthday parties and celebrations 
will also fall under these guidelines. ​ ​Classroom parties will take place no more than once a 
month. 
 
(cf. 3550 ­ Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 3552 ­ Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 3553 ­ Free and Reduced Price Meals) 



(cf. 5141.27 ­ Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs) 
(cf. 5148 ­ Child Care and Development) 
(cf. 5148.3 ­ Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide access to free, potable water during meal times in 
the food service area in accordance with Education Code 38086 and 42 USC 1758, and shall 
encourage students' consumption of water by educating them about the health benefits of water 
and serving water in an appealing manner. 
 
The Board believes that all foods and beverages sold to students at district schools, including 
those available outside the district's food services program, should support the health curriculum 
and promote optimal health. Nutritional standards adopted by the district for foods and beverages 
provided through student stores, vending machines, or other venues shall meet or exceed state 
and federal nutritional standards.  Nutrition Services will approve all other foods sold.  
 

STUDENT WELLNESS ​(continued) 
  
(cf. 3312 ­ Contracts) 
(cf. 3554 ­ Other Food Sales) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall encourage school organizations to use healthy food items 
or non­food items for fundraising purposes. He/she also shall encourage school staff to avoid the 
use of non­nutritious foods as a reward for students' academic performance, accomplishments, or 
classroom behavior. 
 
(cf. 1230 ­ School­Connected Organizations) 
 
School staff shall encourage parents/guardians or other volunteers to support the district's 
nutrition education program by considering nutritional quality when selecting any snacks which 
they may donate for occasional class parties. Class parties or celebrations shall be held after the 
lunch period when possible. 
 
Program Implementation and Evaluation 
 
The Superintendent shall designate one or more district or school employees, as appropriate, to 
ensure that each school site complies with this policy, such as the Principal at each site.  (42 USC 
1758b) 
 
(cf. 0500 ­ Accountability) 
(cf. 3555 ­ Nutrition Program Compliance) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall assess the implementation and effectiveness of this policy 
at least once every two years. 
 



The assessment shall include the extent to which district schools are in compliance with this 
policy, the extent to which this policy compares to model wellness policies available from the 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, and a description of the progress made in attaining the goals of 
the wellness policy.  (42 USC 1758b) 
 
The Board and the Superintendent or designee shall establish indicators that will be used to 
measure the implementation and effectiveness of the district activities related to student 
wellness.  Such indicators may include, but are not limited to: 
 
1. Descriptions of the district's nutrition education, physical education, and health education 

curricula and the extent to which they align with state academic content standards and 
legal requirements 

 
2. An analysis of the nutritional content of school meals and snacks served in all district 

programs, based on a sample of menus and production records 
 

3. Student participation rates in all school meal and/or snack programs, including the 
STUDENT WELLNESS ​(continued) 

 
number of students enrolled in the free and reduced­price meals program compared to the 
number of students eligible for that program 

 
4. Extent to which foods sold on campus outside the food services program, such as through 

vending machines, student stores, or fundraisers, comply with nutritional standards 
 
5. Results of the state's physical fitness test at applicable grade levels 
 
6. Number of minutes of physical education offered at each grade span, and the estimated 
percentage of class time spent in moderate to vigorous physical activity.  Number of minutes 
eating recommended by the California Department of Education is 20 minutes 
 
7. A description of district efforts to provide additional opportunities for physical activity 
outside of the physical education program 
 
8. A description of other district wide or school­based wellness activities offered, including 
the number of sites and/or students participating, as appropriate 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall invite feedback on district and school wellness activities 
from food service personnel, school administrators, the school health council, parents/guardians, 
students, teachers, before­ and after­school program staff, and/or other appropriate persons. 
 
As feasible, the assessment report may include a comparison of results across multiple years, a 
comparison of district data with county, statewide, or national data, and/or a comparison of 



wellness data with other student outcomes such as academic indicators or student discipline 
rates. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall inform and update the public, including parents/guardians, 
students, and others in the community, about the content and implementation of this policy and 
assessment results.  (42 USC 1758b) 
 
In addition, the assessment results shall be submitted to the Board for the purposes of evaluating 
policy and practice, recognizing accomplishments, and making policy adjustments as needed to 
focus district resources and efforts on actions that are most likely to make a positive impact on 
student health and achievement. 
 
Posting Requirements 
 
Each school shall post the district's policies and regulations on nutrition and physical activity in 
public view within all school cafeterias or in other central eating areas. (Education Code 49432) 
 
Each school shall also post a summary of nutrition and physical activity laws and regulations 
prepared by the California Department of Education. 
 
STUDENT WELLNESS ​(continued) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
33350­33354  CDE responsibilities re: physical education 
49430­49434  Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001 
49490­49494  School breakfast and lunch programs 
49500­49505  School meals 
49510­49520  Nutrition 
49530­49536  Child Nutrition Act 
49540­49546  Child care food program 
49547­49548.3  Comprehensive nutrition services 
49550­49561  Meals for needy students 
49565­49565.8  California Fresh Start pilot program 
49570  National School Lunch Act 
51210  Course of study, grades 1­6 
51220  Course of study, grades 7­12 
51222 Physical education 
51223  Physical education, elementary schools 
51795­51796.5  School instructional gardens 
51880­51921  Comprehensive health education 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
15500­15501  Food sales by student organizations 
15510  Mandatory meals for needy students 
15530­15535  Nutrition education 



15550­15565  School lunch and breakfast programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1751­1769  National School Lunch Program, especially: 
1758b Local wellness policy 
1771­1791  Child Nutrition Act, especially: 
1773  School Breakfast Program 
1779  Rules and regulations, Child Nutrition Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
210.1­210.31  National School Lunch Program 
220.1­220.23  National School Breakfast Program 
COURT DECISIONS 
Frazer v. Dixon Unified School District, (1993) 18 Cal.App.4th 781 
 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Increasing Access to Drinking Water in Schools,​ Policy Brief, March 2013 
Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student Wellness Policies,​ rev. 2012 
Nutrition Standards for Schools: Implications for Student Wellness​, Policy Brief, rev. April 2012 
Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide​, rev. 2012 
Building Healthy Communities: A School Leader's Guide to Collaboration and Community ​Engagement, 
2009 
Safe Routes to School: Program and Policy Strategies for School Districts,​ Policy Brief, 2009 
Physical Education and California Schools,​ Policy Brief, rev. October 2007 
School­Based Marketing of Foods and Beverages: Policy Implications for School Boards, Policy​ Brief, 
March 2006 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Physical Education Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve​, 2009 
Health Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve​, 2003 
CALIFORNIA PROJECT LEAN PUBLICATIONS 
Policy in Action: A Guide to Implementing Your Local School Wellness Policy, October 2006 
CENTER FOR COLLABORATIVE SOLUTIONS 
Changing Lives, Saving Lives: A Step­by­Step Guide to Developing Exemplary Practices in Healthy 
Eating, Physical Activity and Food Security in Afterschool Programs​, March 2010 
CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS 
School Health Index for Physical Activity and Healthy Eating: A Self­Assessment and Planning Guide​, 
2005 
FEDERAL REGISTER 
Rules and Regulations, January 26, 2012, Vol. 77, Number 17, pages 4088­4167 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE BOARDS OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Fit, Healthy and Ready to Learn,​ 2000 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 
Dietary Guidelines for Americans​, 2005 
Changing the Scene, Improving the School Nutrition Environment: A Guide to Local Action​, 2000 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
Action for Healthy Kids: http://www.actionforhealthykids.org 
California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 
California Department of Public Health: http://www.cdph.ca.gov 



California Healthy Kids Resource Center: http://www.californiahealthykids.org 
California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition): 
http://www.californiaprojectlean.org 
California School Nutrition Association: http://www.calsna.org 
Center for Collaborative Solutions: http://www.ccscenter.org 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: http://www.cdc.gov 
Dairy Council of California: http://www.dairycouncilofca.org 
National Alliance for Nutrition and Activity: http://www.cspinet.org/nutritionpolicy/nana.html 
National Association of State Boards of Education: http://www.nasbe.org 
School Nutrition Association: http://www.schoolnutrition.org 
Society for Nutrition Education: http://www.sne.org 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food Nutrition Service, wellness policy: 
http://www.fns.usda.gov/tn/Healthy/wellnesspolicy.html 
 
 
 

(11/07  7/11)  4/13 
 
Policy Reference UPDATE Service 
Copyright 2013 by​ California school Boards Association, West Sacramento, California  95691 
 



GUADALUPE UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Office of Educational Services 

 

 

 

Guadalupe Board of Education     Action Item 

August 10, 2016 

 

 

6-8 Math Materials 

 

The district junior high math teachers  met in December of 2015  to 

investigate the use of College Preparatory Math. Later each member of the 

team piloted the materials.    The samples were available for all teachers to 

review and staff development was provided.  

 

The District Curriculum Council discussed the materials, requirements, and 

student needs at the school site.  During the June meeting the College 

Preparatory Math program was approved for 6-8 adoption. 

 

The textbooks have been on public display at the site as required by law.    
 

























































Board Self-Evaluation Result

Guadalupe Union ESD

Number of members responded

Almost 

Always

Ofen Less 

Ofen
Rarely

1. Conditions of Effective Governance
Not 

Sure

Board unity

 4  0  0  01. The board is focused on achievement for all students.  1

 3  1  0  02. The board is committed to a common vision.  1

 3  1  0  03. The board stays focused on district priorities.  1

 4  0  0  04. The board works well together.  1

 4  0  0  05. The board commits the time to become informed.  1

 4  0  0  06. Individual board members do not undermine board decisions.  1

Roles and responsibilities

 3  1  0  07. Board members agree on the role and responsibilities of the board and the 

superintendent.
 1

 4  0  0  08. Board members follow board agreements regarding speaking for the 

board.
 1

 4  0  0  09. Board members keep confidential matters confidential.  1

 3  1  0  010. The board gives direction to the superintendent only at board meetings.  1

 3  1  0  011. Individual board members do not attempt to direct the superintendent.  1

Board culture

 4  0  0  012. The board treats the superintendent with respect.  1

 4  0  0  013. The board manages internal conflicts in a productive manner.  1

Page 1 of 58/1/2016

Area of growth for 

most members

Area of growth for 

simple majority

A strength for 

simple majority 

A strength for most 

members



Number of members responded

Almost 

Always

Ofen Less 

Ofen
Rarely

1. Conditions of Effective Governance
Not 

Sure

 4  0  0  014. Board members follow agreements on how they will act towards each 

other.
 1

 4  0  0  015. Board members treat each other with respect.  1

 4  0  0  016. Board members demonstrate they understand other perspectives.  1

 4  0  0  017. Board members usually discuss questions about agenda items with the 

superintendent prior to the board meeting.
 1

Board operations

 4  0  0  018. The board governs within board-adopted policies, bylaws and protocols 

to manage board operations.
 1

 4  0  0  019. Board members receive timely information.  1

 4  0  0  020. Board members receive adequate information.  1

 2  1  1  021. All board members receive the same information.  1

 4  0  0  022. Board members follow agreements about how to request clarifying or 

additional information about agenda items.
 1

 4  0  0  023. Board members follow agreements on how to bring up new ideas.  1

 3  1  0  024. Board members follow agreements on how concerns from the community 

will be handled.
 1

Board meetings

 4  0  0  025. The board agrees on the role of the board president in managing board 

meetings.
 1

 4  0  0  026. Board meeting agendas reflect district priorities.  1

 4  0  0  027. Board members come to meetings prepared.  1

Page 2 of 58/1/2016

Area of growth for 

most members

Area of growth for 

simple majority

A strength for 

simple majority 

A strength for most 

members



Number of members responded

Almost 

Always

Ofen Less 

Ofen
Rarely

1. Conditions of Effective Governance
Not 

Sure

 4  0  0  028. The board effectively uses data in its decision-making.  1

 4  0  0  029. The board confines its meetings to a reasonable length of time.  1

 3  1  0  030. There is a good relationship between how long the board spends on an 

agenda item and the importance of the item.
 1

 4  0  0  031. The board effectively manages community input at board meetings.  1

Board development

 4  0  0  032. The board agrees on the process for identifying officers.  1

 4  0  0  033. The board plans for the development and training of the board.  1

 3  1  0  034. The board effectively orients new members.  1

 1  3  0  035. The board reviews its governance agreements regularly.  1

Page 3 of 58/1/2016

Area of growth for 

most members

Area of growth for 

simple majority

A strength for 

simple majority 

A strength for most 

members



Number of members responded

Almost 

Always

Ofen Less 

Ofen
Rarely

2. Board Responsibilities
Not 

Sure

Setting direction

 3  0  0  036. The board provides opportunity for community input when developing 

the district’s mission, core beliefs and vision.
 2

 3  1  0  037. The board adopts long-range priorities.  1

 4  0  0  038. The board uses the district’s mission, core beliefs and vision to drive 

district performance.
 1

 3  1  0  039. The board adopts clear and measurable indicators to assess district 

performance.
 1

Structure

 4  0  0  040. The board adopts a fiscally responsible budget aligned to the district’s 

vision and goals.
 1

 3  1  0  041. The board regularly monitors the fiscal health of the district.  1

 3  1  0  042. The board has an effective process to review, revise and adopt policies.  1

 2  2  0  043. The board establishes priorities for the district’s collective bargaining 

process that support the district vision and goals.
 1

Support

 4  0  0  044. The board demonstrates commitment to district priorities and goals.  1

 4  0  0  045. The board demonstrates support for the superintendent in carrying out 

board directives.
 1

 4  0  0  046. The board is represented at key district events.  1

 4  0  0  047. The board celebrates district accomplishments.  1

Accountability

 2  1  1  048. The board monitors student progress against established benchmarks.  1

Page 4 of 58/1/2016

Area of growth for 

most members

Area of growth for 

simple majority

A strength for 

simple majority 

A strength for most 

members



Number of members responded

Almost 

Always

Ofen Less 

Ofen
Rarely

2. Board Responsibilities
Not 

Sure

 2  2  0  049. The board monitors progress towards district goals based on established 

success indicators.
 1

 3  1  0  050. The board monitors the implementation of the adopted budget.  1

 2  2  0  051. The board monitors the implementation of board policies.  1

 3  1  0  052. The board evaluates the performance of the board.  1

 3  1  0  053. The board evaluates the performance of the superintendent based on 

established expectations.
 1

Community leadership

 4  0  0  054. The board uses cohesive messages to communicate district priorities, 

goals and needs.
 1

 4  0  0  055. The board provides community leadership on educational issues.  1

 3  1  0  056. The board pursues partnerships to support district efforts.  1

 1  2  0  057. The board advocates on behalf of students and public education at the 

local, state and federal levels.
 2

 2  2  0  058. The board informs the community on district priorities, progress, needs 

and opportunities for involvement.
 1

Page 5 of 58/1/2016

Area of growth for 

most members

Area of growth for 

simple majority

A strength for 

simple majority 

A strength for most 

members








































	August 10 2016 Agenda
	Back up August 10 2016
	Drop Out - Graduation Rate Study for GUSD
	Approval of Minutes of the Regular - July 13 2016
	Adoption - Board Mission Vision & Core Beliefs - Rev 8-4-2016
	Approval of Warrant Listing Report of Expenditures 7-01-2016 to 7-31-2016
	Approval of Legal Services between GUSD & Jones Hall Law Corporation
	Adoption of Resolution Proposition 51 - 2016-2017-03
	Approval and Adoption of Job Description (Classified) - Case Manager-Educator
	Approval - 2016 Burnham Consulting Services Agreement
	Formal Adoption Amended-Revised BP 5030 - Student Wellness
	Approval & Adoption of College Preparatory Math Materials for 6th - 8th Grades
	Second Reading of CSBA Updated AR-BP5144-1 Students Suspension&ExpulsionDueProcess
	CSBA Board Self-Evaluation Result for Guadalupe Union SD
	SBCEO Williams Quarterly Report
	Fund Balance Summary July 31 2016
	Transportation Policies -- BP-AR 3540-3541 Transportation Routes & Services



